
 United Nations  E/2008/SR.14

  
 

Economic and Social Council  
Provisional 
 
4 August 2008 
 
Original: English 

 

 

Corrections to this record should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should be 
set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record. They should be sent 
within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, Official Records Editing Section, 
room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza. 

08-40626 (E) 
*0840626* 

Substantive session of 2008 
High-level segment 
 

Provisional summary record (partial)* of the 14th meeting 
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Tuesday, 1 July 2008, at 10 a.m. 
 

 President: Mr. Mérorès . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (Haiti) 
 
 
 

Contents 
 

Development Cooperation Forum (continued) 

 
 

 * No summary record was prepared for the rest of the meeting. 



E/2008/SR.14  
 

08-40626 2 
 

The meeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m. 
 
 

Development Cooperation Forum (continued) 
 

Keynote address: The changing landscape and 
dynamics of international development cooperation  
 

1. Mr. Manuel (Special Envoy of the Secretary-
General for the Doha Review Conference) said that the 
international community had long recognized that the 
achievement of the Millennium Development Goals 
(MDGs) depended on deepened partnership, 
institutional reform and increased resources for 
financing for development.  The Monterrey Conference 
and Consensus provided a compelling vision for 
common action, having generated innovative ideas, and 
having assembled international institutions in a 
common framework, focusing on a collective response 
to poverty and human development. 

2. The Monterrey Consensus was built on countries’ 
acceptance of responsibility for their economic and 
social development, and their understanding that 
sustainable development should be based on sound 
policies and good governance. Consensus was also 
built on the acceptance that the delivery of such 
policies required that greater amounts should be 
earmarked for financing for development.  

3. Specific, quantifiable commitments had been 
forged at Monterrey, and those targets had been 
strengthened even further by the Group of 8 in 2005 
when they made bold plans, and clear commitments on 
resources for official development assistance (ODA), 
debt relief, climate change and on meeting the MDGs, 
especially in Africa. Monterrey represented a 
benchmark, and its message would not be diminished 
through a lack of progress on implementation or on 
outcomes. The Doha Review Conference would 
provide an opportunity to review progress made in 
meeting the 2002 commitments and to define a series 
of measures to put the international community on 
track towards the achievement of the MDGs, which 
had subsequently been confirmed and underscored by 
world leaders in various forums.  

4. New dangers, especially the crises with respect to 
finance, food and fuel had undermined the prospects of 
financing for development. Underlying factors such as 
global imbalances, weak financial governance and 
asset price bubbles that had led to financial disruption 
in 1998 persisted, and the impact of the food crisis was 
a measure of the failure to change the approach to 

financing for development. Consistent implementation 
of the Monterrey undertakings might have mitigated 
the effect of food price rises on political stability and 
social cohesion, and enhanced the realization of the 
Goals.  

5. Many of the gains made in creating an 
environment conducive to the mobilization of domestic 
resources had been threatened by high fuel costs, 
which could worsen the situation with respect to 
finance and food. In the case of oil, the long-term view 
must also be considered: pumping more oil would 
increase emissions and further distort global 
imbalances. 

6. Procrastination in responding to the challenges 
would increase their adverse effects, which was why 
countries must be held accountable for the full 
implementation of decisions taken and why multilateral 
approaches must be respected. Strengthened 
governance could change the landscape of development 
cooperation, and the desired objective should be a 
scenario in which units of aid spent in recipient 
countries could be measured against the same amount 
spent in donor countries. The results of such 
expenditures should be equal across a common and 
universally acknowledged unit of account. 

7. Over the longer term, the problems of food and 
fuel required major transformations which, however, 
could not be achieved overnight. In the absence of 
legally enforceable mechanisms, the international 
community was a long way from meeting its 
commitments, and the credibility of such undertakings 
by world leaders was at stake. Failure to meet the ODA 
commitments made at Monterrey would undermine 
trust in the international community’s capacity to 
confront the challenge of climate change, for example. 
The European Union had proposed the adoption of 
rolling multi-annual indicative timetables showing how 
donors intended to reach their ODA targets as one way 
of ensuring the fulfilment of commitments. 

8. Perhaps the shifts in the global economy over the 
previous five years had created new opportunities for 
addressing challenges posed by the Monterrey process, 
but regardless of the approach taken, the resolve in 
holding countries to account for their prior 
commitments must be firm. Given the number of 
critical meetings scheduled to take place by the end of 
2008, it might be timely to consider expectations and 



 E/2008/SR.14
 

3 08-40626 
 

to promote an understanding of interdependence among 
world leaders.  

9. Mr. Panitchpakdi (Secretary-General of the 
United Nations Conference on Trade and 
Development) said that the complex architecture of 
development cooperation was influenced by the 
diversity of conditions prevailing within countries and 
the multiplicity of their needs. Issues relating to aid 
had been further compounded by the constant evolution 
of the development agenda and theories, and by the 
emergence of crises. Aid for trade had been integrated 
into the Doha Round, but even in terms of capacity-
building and adjustment implementation, there was talk 
of new forms of aid that would have to mainstream 
trade into the development strategy. The nature of 
development cooperation itself was evolving to the 
extent that new non-Development Assistance 
Committee (DAC) donors were appearing; there was 
increased emphasis on triangular assistance, grants, 
and the private sector. Philanthropic entities had 
become increasingly active, especially in the 
disbursement of vertical funds for specific sectors such 
as health and environment.  

10. On the whole, ODA commitments had largely not 
been met. The bulk of the increase in new technical 
assistance in recent years had been derived from the 
enhancement of the debt relief programme and much 
assistance was linked to conditionalities based on 
governance and institutional reform. Furthermore, the 
level of real aid per capita, at the start of the new 
millennium, had not actually risen above the levels 
attained in the 1970s and 80s. 

11. Additionality and aid effectiveness were key 
issues in the new landscape of ODA and development 
cooperation. In its 2008 Trade and Development 
Report, UNCTAD had addressed additionality, for the 
first time, through econometric analysis. In its analysis, 
the Conference divided donors into three groups: the 
parsimonious, the generous and those which fell 
somewhere between those extremes. Experience 
showed that the generous donors provided fewer 
additionalities than expected but that there was no 
statistical difference between the other two groups in 
that regard. That assessment was not conclusive and 
the situation would be reviewed in the future. The issue 
arose with every crisis since funding for climate 
change mitigation and the Aid for Trade initiative must 
be provided as an additionality. 

12. The effectiveness of ODA was normally 
measured in terms of the administration of assistance, 
ownership, conditionality, harmonization of delivery 
and mutual accountability. But it was also important to 
consider whether ODA flowed into sectors that 
enhanced the economic infrastructure and the 
production sector with a view to poverty reduction and 
development. ODA was not always harmonized with 
the needs of States which had low levels of foreign 
direct investment (FDI) in comparison with their gross 
national income (GNI). While it might be assumed that 
the needier States would receive the most ODA for 
social programmes, that was not the case in practice. 
There was no correlation between the ODA that a State 
received and its rank on the Human Development 
Index; thus, there was a need to harmonize assistance 
with achievement of the MDGs. 

13. A genuine effort should be made to generate 
growth as a means to poverty reduction. Increasingly, 
donors’ conditionalities on ODA were being extended 
beyond the economic sphere into the fields of 
governance and national institutions. It remained to be 
seen whether that approach would promote progress 
towards the MDGs since cultural, social, political, 
economic and historic factors would inevitably enter 
into any discussion of how to define “good 
governance”. Such conditionalities could have a 
negative impact on economic and development 
strategies, and the balance between poverty reduction 
strategies and the recipient State’s desire for ownership 
of those processes could differ from country to country. 

14. A shortfall in ODA of over US$ 400 billion was 
anticipated for the period covered by the Goals. 
Various types of financing were being used to 
supplement ODA, and it was important to prevent 
confusion and to avoid placing new debt burdens on 
recipient States; as the representative of Germany had 
suggested, the use of carbon emissions quota auctions 
as a source of additional funding for adaptation efforts 
might be an approach worth pursuing. Funding from 
private sources must be coordinated; for example, 
assistance in the area of health care would be most 
effective if it targeted the entire health-care system 
rather than a specific disease. 

15. Lastly, although South-South economic 
cooperation had doubled over the past two years, it 
amounted to only 3 per cent of funding from DAC 
members of the Organization for Economic 
Cooperation and Development (OECD). Countries 



E/2008/SR.14  
 

08-40626 4 
 

were amenable to receiving such assistance because it 
was not accompanied by conditionalities and involved 
few bureaucratic procedures. 

16. Mr. Zainal Abidin (Malaysia) said the Special 
Envoy of the Secretary-General had rightly noted that 
the vision of the “grand bargain” embodied in the 
Monterrey Consensus was not shared by all countries. 
A “report card” showing the achievements of both the 
developed and the developing States was needed; ODA 
flows had been slow and, with a few exceptions, it was 
the developing States that had shown the greatest 
commitment to meeting their obligations under the 
Consensus. However, the international environment 
was becoming more challenging and there was some 
confusion as to the model to be followed.  

17. The developed States which had called on some 
developing countries to assume a greater responsibility 
for assisting the least developed among them and for 
addressing the issue of climate change lacked 
credibility, since the developed world had failed to 
deliver on its promises. He was frustrated by the 
tendency to speak of climate change as if the problem 
could not be addressed until 2012; there was no reason 
why action should not be taken immediately. 

18. Mr. Sow (Observer for Guinea) stressed the need 
for a harmonized international solution to the problems 
of countries in post-conflict situations, especially in 
Africa. Sierra Leone, Liberia, Guinea-Bissau and even 
Côte d’Ivoire were emerging from conflicts, but 
Guinea remained at the epicentre of the crisis in the 
region. Ten per cent of its inhabitants were refugees 
and, were it not for the Government’s political and 
military efforts, the country would face even greater 
difficulties. He recognized that Guinea faced problems 
in the area of governance; however, a consensus 
Government had been established during the past year 
through an agreement with the State’s trade unions, the 
nation’s macroeconomic framework had been restored 
and contact with the International Monetary Fund 
(IMF) had been renewed. Unfortunately, there had been 
little progress in addressing the electricity deficit, 
which was compounded by the current food crisis. The 
new Government stood ready to work with the 
opposition but without international assistance, the 
situation was likely to worsen. 

19. Mr. Manuel (Special Envoy of the Secretary-
General for the Doha Review Conference), replying to 
the representative of Malaysia, said that the principal 

pillar of the Monterrey Consensus was that the 
developing States must take responsibility for 
improving their governance; however, he agreed that 
that process should be accompanied by increased ODA. 
The most recent studies on the economic development 
of sub-Saharan Africa showed that single-digit 
inflation had been achieved and that most African 
States had fiscal surpluses. Yet, despite their efforts, 
they were no better able to achieve the MDGs or to 
facilitate production than in the past. It was 
unacceptable for the Monterrey commitments to be met 
by one side of the resulting partnership and not by the 
other; before the Doha Review Conference, States 
should focus on the commitments that had already been 
made and on the need for accountability mechanisms. 
The international community should respond to the 
development needs of Member States that were 
emerging from poverty not because of the urging of 
others, but because it was the right thing to do. The 
focus should not be on calling into question the 
credibility of wealthy States that had failed to meet 
their commitments; instead, the States that acted in 
good faith should join their efforts and set an example. 

20. With regard to the statement by the representative 
of Guinea, the key issue in post-conflict situations was 
the speed with which minimal resources were diverted 
to countries facing food stress. It was sometimes 
difficult for States to see that a crisis had resulted from 
a failure to understand the interdependence of markets; 
countries that were both food and fuel importers were 
the most vulnerable in that regard. The attacks of 
11 September 2001 had created a sense of urgency that 
should be matched in response to the crisis that now 
affected the poorest countries of the world. 

21. Mr. Panitchpakdi (Secretary-General of the 
United Nations Conference on Trade and 
Development) said he agreed with the previous 
speaker’s comments on the need for a sense of urgency 
in addressing the current crises. ODA could be 
effective if it was provided quickly in response to 
needs on the ground. Although the Aid for Trade 
initiative had been agreed in the Ministerial 
Declaration adopted at the sixth World Trade 
Organization (WTO) Ministerial Conference, held in 
Hong Kong from 13 to 18 December 2005, not one 
cent of the funding envisaged therein had been 
disbursed in order to help the developing States build 
supply-side capacity and trade-related infrastructure.  

The meeting rose at 11 a.m. 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


